
32925 Summary of Correspondence 

Date From To Contents 

 
01/04/2021 

 
CEC 

 
FOI 

 
Email forwarded to Information Governance Team as an FOI request. 
 

 
01/04/2021 

 
Supplier 1 

 
CEC 

 
Thank you for this. It does not really clarify the question in relation to a COI, as all I can do is take 
your word and the colleges as no data being provided to prove this, unless you can give me a list of 
all parties involved in the process. I thank-you for investigating the process which has taken place 
to date. Could you clarify for me however the part the ECC has taken in this 'award', as at the 
minute all I see is ECC handing money to Edinburgh College to do with as they see fit? How did the 
award of the money come about from ECC to Edinburgh college? The main question really is how 
is this good use of taxpayers money for temporary lighting installations which really won't be seen 
by that many people? I'll be following up on this line of enquiry with other parties including press. 
Once these installations have taken place I may come back to ask questions in relation to 
subcontractors involved under an FOI request., if i can see anything that may constitute a COI from 
the delivery perspective. I am still utterly shocked about the nature of the procurement process by 
Edinburgh College. I really cannot understand how they have been allowed, by ECC, to only seek a 
single quote and award on that basis,  the entire process seems very underhanded, not that I 
necessarily would have been invited to tender, but others might and my friends in the industry. No-
one can substantiate this by saying that 21cc are the only ones capable of delivering this contract 
as that is utterly false, (there are other companies, local, who actually would be more qualified to 
deliver this than 21cc)  and anyone stating that fact should be heavily questioned. Based on that, 
could you provide me with  full reasoning to this fact and why Edinburgh college did not seek further 
tenders to compare costs against. Again, there is some due diligence here required by ECC, and by 
the sounds of it, that did not take place? It reads like you agreed to fund this project and then left 
Edinburgh College to do the rest. If you cannot give me the reasoning directly, please introduce me 
to whoever at the college that can answer this as i would liek to understand the Colleges Tendering 
process for this award. I hope you have a great easter break and welcome more feedback from 
you. 
 

 
01/04/2021 

 
CEC 

 
Supplier 1 

 
Apologies for the delay. Officers from the College and the Council have reviewed the processes 
followed and inquired upon the claims made.  We are satisfied that due diligence has been followed 



during the supplier selection process undertaken by Edinburgh College and that there is no 
evidence of any Conflict of Interest between Edinburgh College and the selected supplier. 
 

 
17/03/2021 

 
Supplier 1 

 
CEC 

 
Thanks for your mail and will welcome your response in due course, 
 

 
17/03/2021 

 
CEC 

 
Supplier 1 

 
Thank you for your email in which you have  raised concerned about the procurement process and 
of a potential Conflict of Interest between a lecturer at Edinburgh College and the supplier 21CC 
who have been appointed to carry out the work on the Granton Gas Tower and its illumination. We 
are in discussion with our counterparts at Edinburgh College regarding this and will get back to you 
in due course with a response to your concerns. 
 

 
16/03/2021 

 
Supplier 1 

 
CEC 

 
Do you have any further comments on the below? 
 

 
12/03/2021 

 
Supplier 1 

 
CEC 

 
Thank-you for your response and now I understand why this wasn't publicly tendered. It does raise 
a few queries though from my part. I find it really difficult to understand how this money was 
awarded and 'handed' to Edinburgh college, by the council when no public tendering process was 
used. I would have at least thought that Edinburgh College would have used the PCS system to 
post this tender. Really do not understand how it can be non-competitive. I would really like to 
understand how Edinburgh council have carried out their due diligence of Edinburgh College's 
tendering process for the work, as I presume there has been some? The awarded company, 21cc, 
are an events/rental company that base their work on fireworks, and as this is for two years i would 
imagine some electrical infrastructure would need to be put in place. 21cc dont seem to be qualified 
for this type of work. I may be wrong.  You note they were selected for their heritage work, and their 
knowledge of the CAA. But most lighting companies all have the same knowledge of working if not 
more so, so i really find that difficult to take on board. This then leads on to my next question and 
point, and I'm really hoping that I am wrong. However one of the college's lecturers, who does work 
in visual art with light and projection and lasers, runs a company aside from his work at the college. 
His company works categorically for 21cc. My worry here is if there has been involvement from that 
lecturer then I would say there is a complete conflict of interest. I am probably gearing up to request 
a FOI request over the due diligence played by Edinburgh Council over the award of this tender and 
expenditure of public money. But would welcome any further feedback you may have first on the 



above points? Do you have a contact at Edinburgh College, to whom you could make an 
introduction to,  who is looking after this project? 
 

 
10/03/2021 

 
CEC 

 
Supplier 1 

 
Thanks for the email. The illumination of the Granton gasholder project is being delivered through a 
partnership between The City of Edinburgh Council and Edinburgh College.  The partnership seeks 
to deliver a meanwhile use for the gasholder whilst allowing Edinburgh College’s creative industries 
students to participate in a hands on, practical learning experience. The gasholder will be 
illuminated for two years as an early action project as part of the wider regeneration of Granton.  
Edinburgh College will lead on the installation and ongoing lighting management with their 
appointed lighting specialist.  The lighting specialist will work in collaboration with Edinburgh 
College students in the design and theme of the lighting throughout the two year period. As the 
project is underpinned on the ability for students to collaborate and participate in the lighting, it was 
deemed that Edinburgh College would lead on this and procure the lighting specialist with the 
Council funding this through direct payment. Edinburgh College would be best placed to explain the 
procurement process they have been through but it is the Council’s understanding that this was a 
non-competitive process driven by the requirement for a provider who can facilitate the student led 
nature of the project, their knowledge and experience of lighting heritage assets and their 
understanding of Civil Aviation Authority interface required. Hence why it was put under the PCS 
category - Commissioning of public lighting installations, Under Maintenance services of public-
lighting installations and traffic lights. We have a duty under the Procurement Regulations to publish 
any spend over £50k on PCS (whether tendered or not) which is why you will have seen the award 
notice but couldn’t attribute it to a tender opportunity. I hope this explains things for you? Any 
tendering opportunities we do have will continue to be published on PCS. 
 

 
09/03/2021 

 
Supplier 1 

 
CEC 

 
I hope this email finds you well? I noticed this contract award notice and for some reason 
completely missed the tender opportunity. [redacted] It looks as if, for an installation, it has been 
posted under some strange categories of Commissioning of public lighting installations, Under 
Maintenance services of public-lighting installations and traffic lights. The value of this contract 
does not read like this is commissioning and fully believe this has been posted under an incorrect 
coding.I would like further information to be provided and an explanation of the procurement route, 
prior to lodging an official complaint and FOI request, I look forward to your response, 
 

 



 
01/04/2021 

 
CEC 

 
Supplier 2  

 
Apologies for the delay in responding to you. Officers from the College and the Council have 
reviewed the processes followed and inquired upon the claims made.  We are satisfied that due 
diligence has been followed during the supplier selection process undertaken by Edinburgh College 
and that there is no evidence of any Conflict of Interest between Edinburgh College and the 
selected supplier. 
 

 
17/03/2021 

 
CEC 

 
Supplier 2 

 
Thank you for your email regarding the Contract Award Notice on Public Contracts Scotland entitled 
Partnership Payment to Illuminate the Granton Gas Holder (dated 2nd March 2021). I note you 
have requested for the original tender documents to be emailed to you. We are treating this as a 
request for information under the Freedom of Information (Scotland) Act 2002, and I have 
forwarded this onto our Information Rights Team who will be in touch with you directly and in due 
course. You have also raised concerned about the procurement process and of a potential Conflict 
of Interest between a lecturer at Edinburgh College and the supplier 21CC who have been 
appointed to carry out the work on the Granton Gas Tower and its illumination. We are in 
discussion with our counterparts at Edinburgh College regarding this and will get back to you in due 
course with a response to your concerns. In the meantime, if you wish to raise any Freedom of 
Information requests with either the City of Edinburgh Council and/or Edinburgh College please 
follow the links below for more information:City of Edinburgh Council: 
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/foi   
Edinburgh College: https://www.edinburghcollege.ac.uk/Welcome/Governance/Freedom-of-
Information   
 

 
15/03/2021 

 
Supplier 2 

 
CEC 

 
I wish to enquire with regards to the recent partnership payment to illuminate the Granton Gas 
Holder. Discussions with fellow industry representatives have left myself and others curious as to 
the original tender details.  Can these please be forwarded to myself at the above email address?  
[redacted] We apologise if we have missed something, but due to our actively seeking out this 
opportunity we do not believe that we did miss the opportunity.  As such, we are led to enquire as to 
the due process surrounding this opportunity. We are all aware of the close and complex nature of 
the relationship between the Edinburgh College and the existing lecturer ownership of certain 
companies and we would hope that there is no conflict of interest that could have been omitted via 
due process. Please let us know if there were any steps we missed in actively seeking to participate 
in this opportunity.  Likewise, if there are arising conflicts of interest please advise as to how we 



may progress the situation in the interest of fair competition for an industry that finds itself struggling 
particularly under such tight covid restrictions. With many thanks for your time and ongoing support. 
 

 


